
North Providence Public Schools 
School Bus Transportation Request for Proposals 

 
Addendum #1 

 
 

1. Change in Bid Opening Date 
The bid opening date is extended to 10:00 a.m., local time, on Wednesday, 
October 16, 2024.  Bids will be publicly opened and read at that time at the North 
Providence School Administration Office, 2240 Mineral Spring Avenue, North 
Providence, RI 02911. 

 
2. Document Interpretation/Correction - Questions arising from the 

Bid Specifications should be directed to: 
 

Lisa Casinelli 
  Director of Finance 

North Providence School Department 
2 240 Mineral Spring Ave. North Providence, RI 02911 

Phone: 401-233-1104 
Fax: 401-233-1106 

Email: financedirector@npsd.k12.ri.us 
 

3. Required Number of Buses: 
 

Number of Current Buses Required for Regular and Special Education 
Transportation 

 

71 Passenger  13 
35 Passenger  0 
19-20 Passenger  3 
4 Passenger Van  0 
Wheelchair Bus  5 

 
4. Questions & Answers from Prospective Bidders 

 
Please see Questions & Answers document and attachments. 

mailto:financedirector@npsd.k12.ri.us
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BID SUBMITTAL FORM 
REVISED 10/4/24 

 

Year 1: July 1, 2025-June 30, 2026 
 

A. Regular Transportation Routes 

Type D – 71 Passenger Buses 

Cost per Bus per Day $ __________X   13 Buses X 180 days =        $ _____________ 

 
 

B. Special Education Vehicles - With Wheelchair Lift (Includes  

    Bus Aides/Monitors) 

Cost per Bus per Day  $__________ X 5 buses x 180 days =  $ _____________ 

 

Type A – 19-20 Passenger Bus (Includes      

Bus Aides/Monitors) 

Cost per Bus per Day  $ __________ X 3 Bus X 180 days =               $ _____________ 

 
 

C. Pre School & Kindergarten  – Mid Day Runs (1 Hour) 

Cost per Bus per day                 $_______ X 5 buses x 180 days  =      $ _____________ 

 

 

D. Summer Transportation 

Cost per Vehicle per Day $_____________ X 5 buses x 20 days =        $ _____________ 

 

 

E. Bus Monitors/Aides Cost per Hour             $______________ 
 

      F.   Athletics & Field Trips Driver Cost Per Hour                     $______________ 

 

      G. Athletics & Field Trips Bus Cost per Mile                     $______________ 

 

H. Transition Bus Total Cost per hour (4 hours daily)        $______________ 

 

I. Late Bus Total Cost per hour (1 hour daily, when needed)       $______________ 

 
J. Cost of Perfomance Bond                       $______________ 

 
K. Cost of Routing System            $______________ 



Questions and Answers for North Providence Public Schools RFP  

for School Bus Transportation 

October 4, 2024 
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1. The route information provided is incomplete, it only provides some route information for 

13 routes/13 unique bus numbers. To confirm, are the 13 routes provided the Regular 

Education routes? 

 

Answer:  The route information on the website is the regular ed routes.   

Can you please provide the routing information or the 7 Special Education routes? 

Answer:  Please see the attached for information regarding the eight (8) special ed routes.   We 

are unable to provide the stops because of confidentiality. 

Please provide a complete list of all 20 routes that includes mileage, vehicle type, passenger count, 

and any special equipment needed (Wheelchair lift; Air Conditioning). The routing software of the 

current contractor will produce a report with this information. 

Answer:  Please see the attached fleet information sheet 

A. On page 8 of the RFP, it lists the 'Number of Current Buses Required for Regular and Special 

Education Transportation' at 22 total. Does this list include the spare buses? 

      Answer:  There are 21 regular and special education routes for FY25.   

B. Does the total of the 15 - 71 passenger buses listed on page 8 include the 2 dedicated buses 

required for athletics and field trip? 

Answer: Yes.  There are 13 regular education buses and 2 spare buses.   

C. There are zero buses listed here for the 35 Passenger bus, can Section B of the Bid Submittal 

Form, page 38 (pricing page) please be removed? 

Answer:  Yes, please see attached revised bid submittal form. 

D. Can the Bid Submittal Form (pricing page) please be updated to match the correct 

routes/fleet listed on page 8 of the RFP? — For example, there are 5 wheelchair buses 

listed on page 8 but only 3 wheelchair buses on the pricing page.  

Answer:  Yes, please see attached revised bid submittal form. 

E. FYI - The dates - Year 1: July 1, 2024-June 30, 2025 - for the Bid Submittal Form are incorrect. 

Answer:  Duly noted and corrected. 
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 2. Please provide a list of the fleet being used by the current contractor including what type; Type A, 

Type C, along with the seating capacity and if any special equipment (wheelchair lift, Air 

Conditioning, etc). 

 

Answer:  Please see attached fleet list. 

 3. Please provide a copy of the current contract including the rates that will be charged for the 2024-  
2025 school year. 

 

Answer:  Please see the attached contract.  Also, see the September invoices for current pricing.  

4. Please provide a 3-month sample of invoices that demonstrate how the rates are applied.  

    Answer:  Please see attached invoices for March 2024, May 2024 and September 2024.  

5. What size/type of buses are required for the 5 summer routes?  

    Answer:  The summer program is typically ESY so the 5 special ed buses are used.  

 6. Please provide an estimate of extracurricular trip (Athletic and Field Trip) volume for this school 

year. Number of trips; hours and/or miles billed; total cost for the year. If an estimate for this 

school year is not available, please provide number of trips; hours and/or miles billed; total cost for 

the 2023-2024 school year. 

 

Answer:  215 trips for both HS/MS.  Expenditure of $137,358. 

7. Has the District charged Liquidated Damages to the current contractor? If so, how much annually? 

 Answer:  No. 

 8. Are the current drivers and monitors represented by a union? If so, do you have a copy of the CBA 

you can share? If not, could you please provide the current driver and monitor pay rates? 

Answer:  CBA is attached 
 
 

9.  Did the current contractor have any driver shortages in the 2023-2024 school year? If so, how many drivers 
were they short on average? 

  

 Answer: Yes, three (3). 

10. Are the monitors currently employed by the contractor or the district?  

 Answer:  The monitors are currently employed by the contractor.  
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11. How many monitors are needed? 

 Answer:  21 monitors are needed. 

12. What are the regular pick up times for Pre School & Kindergarten — Mid Day Runs? 

 Answer:  Outbound, 11;15 am;  Inbound, 12:45 pm 

13. What routing software is currently in use? 

 Answer:  Versatrans RP 

14. Would the District consider the date of the RFP submission (October 9th, 2024) for the fuel price 

benchmark rather than the start of the contract? Today's price is known and will be included in our 

proposal. The price could change significantly by July 1, 2025. 

 Answer:  Yes, October 9, 2024 can be used for the fuel price benchmark  

15. Section p. Seatbelts under 4.8 under 4. Equipment states that "In addition, all special 

education and special education-wheelchair buses shall be equipped with seat belts."- Please 

confirm the number of special education students that would sit on each bench. Are seat belts 

with three points of contact required or are lap belts acceptable? 

Answer:  Seat belts with three points of contact are preferred. 2 students per bench where 

practicable. 

16. Section v. Cameras under 4.8 under 4. Equipment states "Any new buses purchased during the 

term of the contract, including option years, shall be equipped with a three (3) camera system." 

—Would the District allow the smaller buses (Type A and wheelchair) for Special Education to 

have two (2) cameras? 

Answer:  The District will allow 2 cameras for any Type A, 23 passenger buses.  All wheelchair 

buses must have 3 cameras. 

17. Section 3.12 Addenda under Section 3. Definition of Terms states "No addenda will be issued 

within the immediate three (3) business day period prior to the date of receipt set for such bids" 

—The answers to these questions are critical in providing an accurate proposal. Also, 3 business 

days is not enough time to put together the proposal after receiving the Addenda. Will the 

district provide an Addenda by 9/27/2024? If not and the Addenda is provided on 10/4/2024, 

will the District please consider extending the due date to 10/18/2024? 

Answer:  The district will extend the bid due date to October 16, 2024.   
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18. Will the district adhere to current RI legislation (R.I Gen. Laws § 16-21-1-d.) and guarantee 

payment to the vendor for at least hundred and eighty (180) days or the length of the 

contracted-for school year, whichever is longer? 

http://webserver.rilin.state.ri.us/Statutes/TITLE16/16-21/16-21-1.HTMT  

Answer:  The District adheres to all RI General Laws. 

http://webserver.rilin.state.ri.us/Statutes/TITLE16/16-21/16-21-1.HTMT




































































Route Number Total Route Mileage
BW01AMSP 7.08
BW01PMSP 5.93
BW05AMSP 2.97
BW05PMSP 4.7

BWAM09 5.88
BWAM12 4.47
BWAM15 5.87
BWAM17 5.21
BWAM18 4.54
BWAM19 3.93
BWPM09 4
BWPM12 4.07
BWPM15 6.55
BWPM17 4.92
BWPM18 4.24
BWPM19 3.39

CD03AMSP 12.91
CD03PMSP 11.69

CDAM14 12.26
CDPM14 9.81

GS07AMSP 11.73
GS07PMSP 9.86
GS08AMSP 14.62
GS08PMSP 11.55

GSAM10 8.68
GSAM15 6.82
GSPM10 6.61
GSPM15 4.96

HS01AMSP 4.23
HS01PMSP 6.39
HS02AMSP 2.65
HS02PMSP 7.57
HS03AMSP 8.55
HS03PMSP 8.26
HS04AMSP 8.66
HS04PMSP 8.7
HS05AMSP 5.21
HS05PMSP 7.17
HS06AMSP 4.2
HS06PMSP 6.28
HS07AMSP 6.08
HS07PMSP 6.81

HS09AM 5.14



HS10AM 5.75
HS11AM 4.81
HS12AM 4.06
HS13AM 6.22
HS14AM 6.36
HS15AM 5.72
HS16AM 4.2
HS17AM 5.49
HS18AM 4.98
HS19AM 6.49
HS21AM 6.5
HS24AM 4.94
HSPM09 6.57
HSPM10 4.5
HSPM11 4.78
HSPM12 6.07
HSPM13 7.13
HSPM14 6.32
HSPM15 7.02
HSPM16 7.8
HSPM17 7.02
HSPM18 6.51
HSPM19 8.36
HSPM21 6.1
HSPM24 7.43

MG02AMSP 9.33
MG02PMSP 7.07
MG04AMSP 8.78
MG04PMSP 6.75

MG11AM 4.88
MG11PM 4.44
MG19AM 7.7
MG19PM 6.99
MG21AM 2.52
MG21PM 5.16
MG24AM 5.43
MG24PM 3.68

RM04AMSP 3.39
RM04PMSP 3.55
RM06AMSP 6.66
RM06PMSP 6.46
RM07AMSP 6.77
RM07PMSP 5.68

RMAM10 5.14



RMAM11 4.32
RMAM13 5.14
RMAM21 4.79
RMAM24 3.92
RMPM10 3.61
RMPM11 5.25
RMPM13 4.83
RMPM14 3.14
RMPM21 5.35
RMSLATE 9.57

SO05AMSP 6.32
SO05PMSP 5.54
SO06AMSP 10.23
SO06PMSP 6.56

SOAM12 6.31
SOAM13 9.98
SOAM17 6.95
SOAM18 6.46
SOPM12 5.93
SOPM13 5.36
SOPM17 5.43
SOPM18 5.1
STMAM 2.54

WH01AMSP 8.51
WH01PMSP 7.97

WHAM09 5.45
WHAM16 8.26
WHPM09 10.37
WHPM16 5.99



ROUTE # ASSET # YEAR BODY MAKESEATING CAP. / Seat CountBRAKES
1 33882 2016 International 21 / 10 seats Hydraulic

22 + 2 w/c /
13 seats

3 35568 2017 Chevy 30 - 10 seats Hydraulic
24 + 1 w/c /

 7 seats
29 + 2 w/c /

11 seats
31 + 2w/c /

13 seats
7 33884 2016 International 20 / 10 seats Hydraulic

54 + 2w/c
20 seats

77 /
25 1/2 seats

10 39564 2020 International 71 / 23 1/2 seats Air
11 41182 2022 International 71 / 23 1/2 seats Air
12 37529 2019 International 71 / 23 1/2 seats Hydraulic
13 41180 2022 International 71 / 23 1/2 seats Air
14 23395 2013 Bluebird 71 / 23 1/2 seats Air
15 33768 2017 International 71 / 23 1/2 seats Hydraulic
16 39667 2020 International 66 / 23 1/2 seats Hydraulic
17 41179 2022 International 71 / 23 1/2 seats Air
18 39563 2020 International 71 / 23 1/2 seats Air
19 39669 2020 International 71 / 23 1/2 seats Hydraulic
21 33762 2017 International 71 / 23 1/2 seats Hydraulic
24 23388 2013 Bluebird 72 / 23 1/2 seats Air

25 34365 2017 International 72 / 24 seats Air
30 23322 2013 Thomas 72 / 25 1/2 seats Air

SP2 21231 2012 Bluebird 20 + 2 W/C(s) / 10 seats Air
48 - No W/C /

16 seats
18  - 2 W/C(s) /

9 seats
SP5 35456 2013 International 66 / 21 1/2 seats Air

2 34666 2018 International Air Assist

4 41183 2022 International Air

5 21239 2012 Bluebird Air

6 34664 2018 International Hydraulic

8 23742 2013 International Air

9 23781 2013 International Air

Air

Spares

SP3 34668 2018 International Hydraulic

SP4 21234 2012 Bluebird

















Route Number Start Time End Time Number of Assigned Stops Total Riders
BW01AMSP 7:39 AM 7:57 AM 4 3
BW01PMSP 2:35 PM 2:52 PM 4 3
BW05AMSP 7:47 AM 8:00 AM 4 3
BW05PMSP 2:32 PM 2:48 PM 5 4
CD03AMSP 8:01 AM 8:42 AM 12 13
CD03PMSP 3:16 PM 3:55 PM 12 13
GS07AMSP 8:17 AM 8:52 AM 9 9
GS07PMSP 3:13 PM 3:52 PM 11 11
GS08AMSP 7:58 AM 8:39 AM 10 9
GS08PMSP 3:12 PM 3:46 PM 9 8
HS01AMSP 6:56 AM 7:05 AM 4 4
HS01PMSP 1:48 PM 1:57 PM 5 5
HS02AMSP 7:01 AM 7:07 AM 4 3
HS02PMSP 1:48 PM 2:00 PM 5 4
HS03AMSP 6:49 AM 7:01 AM 3 2
HS03PMSP 1:52 PM 2:01 PM 3 2
HS04AMSP 6:38 AM 7:06 AM 8 6
HS04PMSP 1:48 PM 2:12 PM 8 6
HS05AMSP 6:58 AM 7:09 AM 5 4
HS05PMSP 1:47 PM 1:58 PM 6 5
HS06AMSP 7:01 AM 7:08 AM 4 4
HS06PMSP 1:46 PM 1:53 PM 4 3
HS07AMSP 6:51 AM 7:08 AM 5 4
HS07PMSP 1:47 PM 2:01 PM 5 4

MG02AMSP 8:12 AM 8:43 AM 9 9
MG02PMSP 3:12 PM 3:48 PM 9 9
MG04AMSP 8:21 AM 8:38 AM 5 4
MG04PMSP 3:15 PM 3:33 PM 5 4
RM04AMSP 7:53 AM 8:00 AM 3 2
RM04PMSP 2:29 PM 2:37 PM 3 2
RM06AMSP 7:43 AM 7:49 AM 3 2
RM06PMSP 2:39 PM 2:45 PM 3 2
RM07AMSP 7:38 AM 8:02 AM 6 5
RM07PMSP 2:27 PM 2:48 PM 6 5
SO05AMSP 8:25 AM 8:42 AM 7 6
SO05PMSP 3:10 PM 3:32 PM 8 7
SO06AMSP 8:20 AM 8:50 AM 8 9
SO06PMSP 3:10 PM 3:45 PM 8 9

WH01AMSP 8:18 AM 8:43 AM 8 9
WH01PMSP 3:18 PM 3:46 PM 8 9
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